Public-data File 86-56 COAL BIBLIOGRAPHY OF NORTHWEST ALASKA, BY AREA

Ву

Jeffrey A. Morehouse

Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys

June 1986

THIS REPORT HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED FOR TECHNICAL CONTENT (EXCEPT AS NOTED IN TEXT) OR FOR CONFORMITY TO THE EDITORIAL STANDARDS OF DGGS.

794 University Avenue, Basement Fairbanks, Alaska 99709

. ,

CONTENTS

	Page
Colville River	1
Ikikpuk River	3
Kugrua River	4
Kuk River	4
Meade River	6
Cape Beaufort	8
Deadfall Syncline	10
Liz-A Syncline	10
Corwin Formation	11
Corwin Mines	12
Kokolik River	12
Kukpowruk River	14
Utukok River	16
Cape Lisburne	17
Point Hope	20
Kobuk River	21
Kobuk River/Hunt River	22
Kobuk River/Kallarichuk River	23
Kobuk River/Kogoluktuk River	23
Kobuk River/Lockwood Hills	23
Seward Peninsula	23
Chicago Creek	26
Koyuk River	28
Kugruk River	2 9
Sinuk River	31
Unalekleet	31

COAL BIBLIOGRAPHY OF NORTHWEST ALASKA, BY AREA

By Jeffery T. Morehouse

COLVILLE RIVER

- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. Bl-B36, illus., tables.
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region, Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. EI-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Brody, S.E., and DeVries, A.H., 1981, Coal policy paper-leasing and taxation: Alaska State Legislature - House Research Agency Report 80-4, 75 p., tables, illus.
- Brooks, A.H., 1902, The coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey 22nd Annual Report 1900-1901, part III-2, p. 515-571, illus., tables, map. (Wickersham no. 8235)
- Brooks, A.H., 1908, The distribution of mineral resources in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345, p. 21-22.
- Brooks, A.H., 1910, Alaska coal and its utilization in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1909: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 442, p. 47-100, map.
- Brooks, A.H., and others, 1908, Mineral resources of Alaska, Report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345, p. 21-22.
- Clark, P.R., 1973, Transportation economics of coal resources of northern slope coalfields, Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 31, 134 p., tables (M.S. thesis, University of Alaska).
- Coffin, F.P., 1919, Methods for more efficiently utilizing our fuel resources, Part XXIX, the coal resources and transportation facilities in Alaska: General Electric Review, v. 22, no. 7, p. 517-524, 526. (Wickersham no. 1669)
- Collier, A.J., 1905, Coalfields of the Cape Lisburne region, Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Report on progress of investigations of mineral resources of Alaska in 1904: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 259, p. 172-185, tables. (Preliminary to U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278.)
- Crane, W.R., 1913, The coal resources of Alaska: American Mining Congress, 16th Annual Session, Report, p. 192-144. (Wickersham no. 1678)
- Dall, W.H., and Harris, G.D., 1892, Correlation papers, Neocene: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 84, p. 232-268.
- E.J. Longyear Company, 1958, Report to University of California Radiation Laboratory on the mineral potential and proposed harbor locations in northwestern Alaska: p. 41-44.
- Eakins, G.R., and Conwell, C.N., 1981, Coal program of the Alaska Division of Geological Surveys: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 464-465.
- Fox, J.E., and others, 1979, A study of reservoir characteristics of the Nanushuk and Colville Groups, Umiat test well 11, National Petroleum Reserve in Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Circular 820, scattered pages.

- Gates, G.O., 1946, Coal fields of Alaska, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 1-9.
- Harrison, E.S., 1908, Coal resources of Alaska: Alaska-Yukon Magazine, v. 5, no. 1, March, p. 1, 5-9. (Wickersham no. 1697)
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, maps.
- Kaiser Engineers, Inc., 1977, Technical and economic feasibility surface mining coal deposits North Slope of Alaska, final report: Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines, 157 p., map.
- Langenheim, R.L., Jr., Smiley, C.J., and Gray, Jane, 1960, Cretaceous amber from the Arctic coastal plain of Alaska: G.S.A. Bulletin, v. 71, p. 1345-1356, 2 figs.
- Martin, G.C., 1907, The Alaska coalfields: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 314-B, p. 40-46, illus., tables, maps.
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, illus.
- Rao, P.D., 1981, Alaska's coal resources and research in coal development (preprints): Resource Development and Engineering Conference, National Cheng Kung University, Taiwan, R.O.C., p. 5, 7, 8.
- Robinson, F.M., 1959, Test wells, Titaluk and Knifeblade area, Alaska, in Exploration of Naval Petroleum Reserve No. 4 and adjacent areas, northern Alaska, 1944-53, part 5, subsurface geology and engineering data: U.S. Geological Survey, p. 305-306, 379.
- Sanders, R.B., 1976, Coal resources of Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 21-32.
- Schraeder, F.C., 1904, A reconnaissance in northern Alaska across the Rocky Mountains to Cape Lisburne in 1901 with notes by W.J. Peters: U.S. Geological Survey, p. 20, 106-114, geol. map.
- Selvig, W.A., and Ode, W.H., 1957, Low temperature carbonization of Alaska coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Bulletin 571, p. 47-53.
- Smith, P.S., 1927, Surveys in northwestern Alaska in 1926: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 797-D, p. 141-142.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 290-320, geol. map.
- Tailleur, I.L., 1965, Low-volatile bituminous coal of Mississippian age on the Lisburne Peninsula, northwestern Alaska, in Geological Survey research, 1965: U.S. Geological Survey, p. 525-B, B34-B38, illus., tables.
- Tailleur, I.C., and Brosge, W.P., 1976, Coal resources of northern Alaska may be nation's largest: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 219-226.
- Thiessen, Reinhardt, 1925, Origin of the boghead coals: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 132-I, p. 132-133, illus.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines (n.d.), Mineral apprisal of the proposed Utukok and Colville Wild and Scenic Rivers: A summary report: Open-file Report 37-80.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines Juneau, 1975, Alaska's energy and mineral potential 1975: p. 3, maps.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines Juneau, 1978, Alaska's mineral potential, p. 3-4, maps.

- U.S. Congress, House of Representatives, Committee on Public Lands, 1911, Hearings...on H.R. 32080 "To provide for the leasing of coal lands in the district of Alaska and for other purposes": Government Printing Office, 99 p.
- U.S. Department of the Interior, 1916, Regulations concerning land-coal leases in the Territory of Alaska: Washington Government Printing Office, 86 p., maps.
- Warfield, R.S., 1967, Resume of information on Alaskan bituminous coals with particular emphasis on coking characteristics: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 11-67, 20 p.
- Wolff, E.N., and others, 1973, Optimum transportation systems to serve the mineral industry north of the Yukon basin in Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report No. 29, scattered pages.

IKPIKPUK RIVER

- Abernathy, R.F., and Cochrane, E.M., 1960, Fuasibility of ash from United States coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Information Circular 7923. p. 28-32.
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region, Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. E1-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Bottge, R.G., 1973, Potential mineral resources in selected D-2 lands: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 9-74, 55 p., illus.
- Clark, P.R., 1973, Transportation economics of coal resources of northern slope coalfields, Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 31, 134 p., tables (M.S. thesis, University of Alaska).
- Collier, A.J., 1905, Coal fields of the Cape Lisburne region, Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Report on progress of investigations of mineral resources of Alaska in 1904: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 259, p. 172-185, tables (Preliminary to U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278).
- Cooper, H.M., and others, 1946, Analysis of mine, tipple, and delivered samples, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 19-69.
- Cooper, H.M., and others, 1946, Description of mine samples, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 70-110.
- Ebberley, Norman, Jr., 1944, Draft-proposed coal mining Point Barrow area, N. Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Records Container 1604, File 950, Barrow Coal Mine, illus., map.
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report No. 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, maps.
- Kaiser Engineers, Inc., 1977, Technical and economic feasibility surface mining coal deposits north slope of Alaska, final report: Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines, 157 p., map.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 290-320, geol. map.
- Rao, P.D., and Smith, J.E., 1983, Petrology of Cretaceous coals from northern Alaska: U.S. Department of Energy Final Technical Report, Grant No.

DE-FG 22-80, PC 30237 and University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report No. 64, 141 p.

KUGRUA RIVER

- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region, Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. Ei-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Clark, P.R., 1973, Transportation economics of coal resources of northern slope coal fields, Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Resource Laboratory Report 31, 134 p., tables (M.S. thesis, University of Alaska).
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report No. 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, maps.

KUK RIVER

- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. B1-B36, illus., tables.
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region, Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. E1-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Brooks, A.H., 1902, The coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey 22nd Annual Report, 1900-1901, Part III-2, p. 515-571, 111us., tables, map. (Wickersham no. 8235)
- Callahan, J.E., and Martin, G.C., 1981, Coal occurrences of the Nanushuk Group, western Arctic, Alaska (an update): Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 32-60.
- Clark, P.R., 1973, Transportation economics of coal resources of northern slope coal fields, Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 31, 134 p., tables (M.S. thesis, University of Alaska).
- Cooper, H.M., and others, 1946, Analysis of mine, tipple, and delivered samples, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 19-69.
- Cooper, H.M., and others, 1946, Description of mine samples, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 70-110.
- Dutcher, R.R., and others, 1957, Petrography and palynology of certain coals of the Arctic Slope of Alaska: University Park, Pennsylvania State University (Mineral Industries Experiment Station), 37 p., illus., maps.
- E.S. Longyear Company, 1958, Report to University of California Radiation Laboratory on the mineral potential and proposed harbor locations in northwestern Alaska, p. 41-44.
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, maps.
- Kaiser Engineer, Inc., 1977, Technical and economic feasibility of surface mining coal deposits north slope of Alaska, final report: Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines, 157 p., map.

- Langenheim, R.L., Jr., Smiley, C.J., and Gray, Jane, 1960, Cretaceous amber from the Arctic coastal plain of Alaska: G.S.A. Bulletin, v. 71, p. 1345-1356, 2 fig.
- Marcus, K.L., and Rog, S.R., Jr., 1982, Middle Cretaceous coal bearing stratigraphy from Wainwright, North Slope, Alaska: G.S.A. Abstract.
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, illus.
- R.W. Beck and Associates, 1977, Energy study for Barrow, Alaska, for U.S. Department of Interior, Alaska Power Administration, August 1977: Seattle, numerous pages, maps, tables (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau).
- Rao, P.D., 1981, Alaska's coal resources and research in coal development (preprints): Resource Development and Engineering Conference, National Cheng Kung University, Tainan, Taiwan, R.O.C., p. 5, 7, 8.
- Rao, P.D., and Smith, J.E., 1983, Petrology of Cretaceous coals from northern Alaska: U.S. Department of Energy Final Technical Report, Grant No. DE-FG 22-80, PC 30237 and University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 64, 141 p.
- Rao, P.D., and Wolff, E.N., 1980, Characterization and evaluation of washability of Alaskan coals in selected seams from northern Alaska, Broad Pass, Little Tonzona, Tramway Bar, Beluga, Yentna, Kenai, and Nenana coal fields: U.S. Department of Energy Final Technical Report for Phase II, July 1977-February 29, 1979 (DOE/ET/13350/-T2).
- Sanford, R.S., and Pierce, H.C., 1946, Exploration of coal deposits of the Point Barrow and Wainwright areas, northern Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations 3934, 17 p.
- Selvig, W.A., and Ode, W.H., 1957, Low temperature carbonization of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Bulletin 571, p. 47-53.
- Smiley, C.J., 1966, Cretaceous floras, Kuk River area, Alaska: G.S.A. Bulletin 77, no. 1, p. 2.
- Smith, P.S., 1927, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1926, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1926: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 797-A, p. 41-46.
- 1934, Mineral industry in Alaska in 1931, in Smith, P.S., Mineral Resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1931: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 844, p. 9, 69-74.
- Resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1932: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 857-A, p. 7, 9, 65-70.
 - 1934, Mineral industry in Alaska in 1933, in Smith, P.S., Mineral Resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1933: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 864, p. 9, 70-74.
- 1937, Mineral industry in Alaska in 1934, in Smith, P.S., Mineral Resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1934: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 868, p. 9, 10, 72-76.
- Smith, P.S., 1937, Mineral industry in Alaska in 1935, in Smith, P.S., Mineral Resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1935: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 880-A, p. 10, 77-82.
- 1938, The mineral industry of Alaska in 1936: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 897-A, p. 87-92, table.
- 1939, Mineral industry in Alaska in 1938, in Smith, P.S., Mineral Resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1938: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 917, p. 12-13, 92-97.

- 1941, Mineral industry of Alaska in 3939: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 926-A, p. 85-89, table.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 308-310.
- Toenges, A.L., and Jolley, T.R., 1947, Investigation of coal deposits for local use in the Arctic regions of Alaska and proposed mine development: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations RI-4150, 19 p., illus., map.

MEADE RIVER

- Abernathy, R.F., and Cochrane, E.M., 1960, Feasibility of ash from United States coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Information Circular 7923, p. 28-32.
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. Bl-B36, illus., tables.
- 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region,
 Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological
 Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. El-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Brooks, A.H., 1925, Mineral resources of Alaska, 1923, in Brooks, A.H., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1923: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 773, p. 31-34.
- Burnell, E., and Sanford, R.S., 1945, Report on Barrow Coal Mine project at Meade River and plans for future operation as worked out in the Juneau Office....on July 13, 1945: U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs, Record Group 75, Federal Records Container 1604, File 950, Barrow Coal Mine #3.
- Callahan, J.E., and Martin, G.C., 1981, Coal occurrences of the Nanushuk Group, western Arctic, Alaska (an update): Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47.
- Clarks, P.R., 1973, Transportation economics of coal resources of northern slope coal fields, Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 31, 134 p., tables (M.S. thesis, University of Alaska).
- Collins, F.R., 1959, Test wells, Meade and Kaolak areas, Alaska, in Exploration of Naval Petroleum Reserve No. 4 and adjacent areas, northern Alaska, 1944-53, Part 5, subsurface geology and engineering data: U.S. Geological Survey PP 305-P, scattered pages, illus., sections.
- Cooper, H.M., and others, 1946, Analysis of mine, tipple, and delivered samples, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 19-69.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 70-110.
- Dutcher, R.R. and others, 1957, Petrography and palynology of certain coals of the Arctic Slope of Alaska: University Park, Pennsylvania State University, Mineral Industries Experiment Station, 37 p., illus., maps.
- E.J. Longuear Company, 1958, Report to University of California Radiation Laboratory on the mineral potential and proposed harbor locations in northwestern Alaska, p. 41-44.
- Ebberley, Norman, Jr., 1944, Draft-proposed coal mining Point Barrow area, northern Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Records Container 1604, File 950, Barrow Coal Mine, illus., map.

- Gray, Howard, 1981, Mining and conversion of homes to coal for home heating at Atkasook, Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 181-188.
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, map.s
- Heirer, V.D., 1977, Alaska mining history: Alaska Division of Parks, Anchorage, Alaska, History and Archaeology Series No. 17, 463 p.
- Holdsworth, P.R., 1953, Report of the Commissioner of Mines for the biennum ended December 31, 1952: Juneau, U.S. Bureau of Mines, p. 27-31, illus. 1959, Report of the Commissioner for the biennum ended

December 31, 1958: Juneau, U.S. Bureau of Mines, p. 33-34+.

- Kaiser Engineers, Inc., 1977, Technical and economic feasibility of surface mining coal deposits, north slope of Alaska, final report: Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines, 157 p., map.
- Mitchell, G.A., Mitchell, W.W., and McKendrick, J.D., 1981, Soil characterization of Alaskan coal mine spoils: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 412-417.
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, illus.
- Paige, Sidney, and others, 1925, A reconnaissance of the Point Barrow region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey F22, p. 26-32, illus., section, geol. map.
- R.W. Beck and Associates, 1977, Energy study for Barrow, Alaska, for U.S. Department of Interior, Alaska Power Administration, August 1977: Seattle, numerous pages, maps, tables. (Juneau, U.S. Bureau of Mines)
- Rao, P.D., 1981, Alaska's coal resources and research in coal development (preprints): Resource Development and Engineering Conference, National Cheng Kung University, Tainan, Taiwan, R.O.C.
- Rao, P.D., and Wolff, E.N., 1980, Characterization and evaluation of washability of Alaskan coals, selected seams from northern Alaska, Broad Pass, Little Tonzona, Tramway Bar, Beluga, Yentna, Kenai, and Nenana coal fields: U.S. Department of Energy Final Technical Report for Phase II, July, 1977-February 29, 1979 (DOE/ET/13350/-72).
- 1981, Petrographic, mineralogical, and chemical characterization of certain Alaskan coals and washability products, final report:
 Prepared for U.S. Department of Energy, Contract No. ET-78-S-01-3197,
 51 p., extensively illus.
- Sanford, R.S., and Pierce, H.C., 1946, Exploration of coal deposits of the Point Barrow and Wainwright areas, northern Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations 3934, 17 p.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 290-320, geol. map.
- Tailleur, J.L., and Brosge, W.P., 1976, Coal resources of northern Alaska may be nation's largest: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 219-226.
- 1976, Need to revise and test estimates of northern Alaska coal resources, in The United State Geological Survey in Alaska:
 Accomplishments during 1975: U.S. Geological Survey Circular 733, p. 26-27.

- U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs, Juneau (Records), 1954-1959, Meade River Coal Mine Reports, correspondence, and reports: U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Record Container 1603, File 950.2.
- 1954-1959, Meade River Coal Mine, 1954-1955: U.S. Bureau of Indian
 Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Record Container 1603, File 950.1.
 1956-1959, Meade River Coal Mine, 1956-1959: U.S. Bureau of Indian
 Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Record Container 1603, File 950.1.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines, 1945, Coal deposits, Point Barrow and Wainwright areas, northern Alaska (unpublished): Final War Minerals Report, 25 p., map (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau).
- U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau, 1944-45, Correspondence concerning Meade River: Illus., maps (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau File, Meade River).
- Wolff, E.N., and others, 1973, Optimum transportation systems to serve the mineral industry north of the Yukon basin in Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 29, scattered pages.

CAPE BEAUFORT

- Alaska Division of Energy and Power Development, 1979, Alaska regional energy resources, planning project, phase 1 Alaska's energy resources: VII of 2 V., p. 205, 211-213, 222-224, 614-18, G. 20, 11lus., tables (NTIS RLO-2435-1).
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region, Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. El-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Bore, S.C., 1924, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 22, 25, 26.
- Brady, J.G., 1897, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 29.
- Brooks, A.H., 1902, The coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey 22nd Annual Report, 1900-1901, part III-1, p. 515-571, illus., tables, map.
- Callahan, J.E., 1971, Geology and coal resources of T. 6 S., R. 51 W., unsurveyed Umiat principal meridian, in the Cape Beaufort coal field, northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Open-file Report 496, 18 p., illus., tables.
- 1976, Coal investigations in western arctic Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 48-53.
- Callahan, J.E., and Martin, G.C., 1981, Coal occurrences of the Nanushuk Group, western arctic Alaska (an update): Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47.
- Chapman, R.M., and Sable, E.G., 1960, Geology of the Utukuk-Corwin region, northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 303-G, p. 7-20, p. 155-163, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Coffin, F.P., 1919, Methods for more efficiently utilizing our fuel resources, Part XXIX, the coal resources and transportation facilities in Alaska: General Electric Review, v. 22, no. 7, p. 517-524, 526.
- Collier, A.J., 1905, Coal fields of the Cape Lisburne region, Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Report on progress of investigations of mineral resources of Alaska in 1904: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 259, p. 172-185, tables (preliminary to U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278).

- 1906, Geology and coal resources of the Cape Lisburne region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278, 54 p., illus., tables, geol. map.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska, Phase I, Vol. I, Task 1: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources, prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 15 p.
- Vol. II, Task 2: Coal resources of northwest Alaska, Phase I, Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- Hillegas, B.D., and others, 1976, The Alaska Railroad's future freight market: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Railroad Administration, 3V. Lv. scattered, v. 2, p. 47-65. (NTIS PB 262-461-FST).
- Kaiser Engineers, Inc., 1977, Technical and economic feasibility surface mining coal deposits north slope of Alaska, final report: Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines, 157 p., map.
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, illus.
- Packard, Winthrop, 1900, Coal mining at the North Pole: National Monthly, v. 13, no. 12, p. 163-170. (Wickersham no. 1735)
- Pollard, B., 1973, Estimated production costs associated with mining and marketing the coal at Cape Beaufort, Alaska (unpublished): U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau, unpaged.
- Rao, P.D., 1975, Characterization of Alaska's coals: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 33-47.
- 1980, Petrographic, mineralogical, and chemical characterization of certain arctic Alaskan coals from the Cape Beaufort region:
 University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 44, 66 p., tables and illus.
- Rao, P.D., and Smith, J.E., 1983, Petrology of Cretaceous coals from northern Alaska: U.S. Department of Energy final technical report, Grant No. DE-F6 22-80 PC3 0237 and University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 64, 141 p.
- Sanders, R.B., 1981, Coal resources of Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 11-31.
- Schraeder, F.C., 1904, A reconnaissance in northern Alaska across the Rocky Mountains to Cape Lisburne in 1901 with notes by W.J. Peters: U.S. Geological Survey PP 20, p. 106-114, geol. map.
- Spurr, J.E., 1897, Coal in the neighborhood of the gold belt: U.S. Geological Survey 18th Annual Report, pt. III, p. 382.
- University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory, 1969, Annual report of research progress: Report No. 22, p. 3, 6.
- Warfield, R.S., 1967, Resume of information on Alaskan bituminous coals with particular emphasis on coking characteristics: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 11-67, 20 p.
- 1969, Sampling and coking studies of several coal beds in the Kokolik River, Kukpowruk River, and Cape Beaufort areas of arctic northwestern Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations 7321, 58 p., illus., tables.

- Auger holes, 1972, 1973, Jim Callahan's field notebooks, Cape Beaufort area. Blue line map, shows reserve estimates near Cape Beaufort, Kahkatak Creek, etc. T. 55 R., 50 W. ore map is marked 'Received from Callahan 12/18/72.'
- Coal analysis and drill logs of Cape Beaufort coal, memos to and from Jim Callahan, Dr. Rao.
- Correspondence, 1955-1965, regarding Castle Mountain coal, Chickaloon coal, Kukpowruk River coal, Kokolik River coal, and Cape Beaufort.
- Denver Coal Research Lab, 1965, to J.A. Herdlick coking studies of Kokolik River coal with proximate and ultimate analysis.
- Spectrographic report (to Warfield and Pittman, 1967), Kukpowruk River shale and sandstone, Cape Beaufort shale and sandstone, composition.
- USBM, 1964, Proximate analysis of Kokolik and Cape Beaufort area coals: Tables, calculations, sample descriptions, and locations. Petrographic reports (R.S. Warfield submitted samples).

DEADFALL SYNCLINE

- Callahan, J.E., 1976, Coal investigations in western arctic Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 53.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska, Phase I, Vol. I, Task 1: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources, prepared for Alaska Power Authority, ____.

LIZ-A SYNCLINE

- Alaska Division of Energy and Power Development, 1979, Alaska regional energy resources, planning project, phase 1, Alaska's energy resources: VII of 2V., p. 205, 211-213, 222-224, G 14-18, G 20, illus., tables (NTIS RLO-2435-1).
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. BI-B36, illus., tables.
- 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region, Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-E. p. E1-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Bone, S.C., 1924, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 22, 25, 26.
- Brooks, A.H., 1925, Mineral resources of Alaska, 1923, in Brooks, A.H., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1923; U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 773, p. 31-34.
- Callahan, J.E., 1976, Coal investigations in western arctic Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 48-53.
- Callahan, J.E., and Martin, G.C., 1981, Coal occurrences of the Nanushuk Group, western arctic Alaska (update): Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47.
- Chadwick, R.H.W., 1960, Coal for Ruby Creek A report of preliminary reconnaissance: Bear Creek Mining Company, Northwest District, Spokane, Washington (unpublished), 20 p.
- Clark, P.R., 1973, Transportation economics of coal resources of northern slope coal fields, Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry

- Research Laboratory Report 31, 134 p., tables (M.S. thesis, University of Alaska).
- Collier, A.J., 1906, Geology and coal resources of the Cape Lisburne region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278, 54 p., illus., tables, geol. map.
- Conwell, C.N., 1972, Alaskan coals: Transactions of the Society of Mining Engineers, v. 252, no. 3, p. 279-282, illus., map.
- E.J. Longyear Company, 1958, Report to University of California Radiation Laboratory on the mineral potential and proposed harbor locations in northwestern Alaska, p. 41-44.
- Gates, G.O., 1946, Coal fields of Alaska, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 1-9.
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, maps.
- Heirer, V.D., 1977, Alaska mining history: Alaska Division of Parks, Anchorage, Alaska. History and Archaeology Series No. 17, 463 p.
- Kaiser Engineers, Inc., 1977, Technical and economic feasibility surface mining coal deposits north slope of Alaska, final report: Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines, 157 p., map.
- Martin, G.C., 1926, The Mesozoic stratigraphy of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 776, p. 455-461.
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Faribanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, illus.
- Rao, P.D., 1976, Characterization of Alaskan coals: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 33-47.
- 1981, Alaska's coal resources and research in coal development (preprints): Resource Development and Engineering Conference, National Cheng Kung University, Tainan, Taiwan, R.O.C.
- Rao, P.D., and Smith, J.E., 1983, Petrology of Cretaceous coals from northern Alaska: U.S. Department of Energy Final Technical Report, Grant No. DE-FG 22-80 PC 10237 and University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 64, 141 p.
- Smith, P.S., 1927, Surveys in northwestern Alaska in 1926: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 797-D, p. 141-142.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin B15, p. 290-320, geol. map.
- Warfield, R.S., 1967, Resume of information on Alaskan bituminous coals with particular emphasis on coking characteristics: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 11-67, 20 p.
- Wolff, E.N., and others, 1973, Optimum transportation systems to serve the mineral industry north of the Yukon basin in Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 29, scattered pages.

CORWIN FORMATION

Affolter, R.H., Simon, F.O., and Stricker, G.D., 1981, Analysis of coal samples from the Healy, Kenai, Seldovia, and Utukok River Quadrangles, Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 236-266.

- Callahan, J.E., and others, 1969, Geology of T. 15, R. 44 W., unsurveyed, Umiat principle meridian, in the Kukpowruk coal field, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Open-file Report 378, 19 p., tables, illus.
- Chapman, R.M., and Sable, E.G., 1960, Geology of the Utukok-Corwin region, northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 303-C, p. 7-20, 11lus., tables, geol. map.
- Collier, A.J., 1905, Coal fields of the Cape Lisburne region, Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Report on progress of investigation of mineral resources of Alaska in 1904: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 259, p. 172-185, tables (preliminary to U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278).
- Conwell, C.N., 1972, Alaskan coals: Transactions of the Society of Mining Engineers, v. 252, no. 3, p. 279-282, illus., map.
- Knutson, H.A., 1981, Geologic and economic evaluation of bituminous coal, Kukpowruk River region, northern coal field, Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 62-78.
- Langenheim, R.L., Jr., Smiley, C.J., and Gray, Jane, 1960, Cretaceous amber from the arctic coastal plain of Alaska, Geological Society of America Bulletin, v. 71, p. 1345-1356, 2 fig.
- Marcus, K.L., and Rog, S.R., Jr., 1982, Middle Cretaceous coal bearing stratigraphy from Wainwright, North Slope, Alaska (G.S.A. abstract).
- Martin, G.C., 1926, The Mesozoic stratigraphy of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 776, p. 455-461.
- Sable, E.G., and Chapman, R.M., 1955, Coals of the Corwin Formation northwestern (abs.): Geological Society of American Bulletin, v. 66, no. 12, pt. 2, p. 1708-1709.
- Smiley, C.J., 1969, Floral zones and correlations of Cretaceous Kukpowruk and Corwin Formations, northwestern Alaska: American Assoc. of Petroleum Geologists, v. 53, no. 10, 5 fig., 3 tables.

CORWIN MINES

- Crane, W.R., 1913, The coal resources of Alaska: American Mining Congress, 16th Annual Session, Report, p. 192-194. (Wickersham no. 1678)
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska, Phase I, Vol. I, Task I, Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 15 p.
- 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska, Phase I, Vol. II, Task 2, Coal resources of northwest Alaska: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- Schraeder, F.C., 1904, A reconnaissance in northern Alaska across the Rocky Mountains to Cape Lisburne in 1901 with notes by W.J. Peters: U.S. Geological Survey PP 20, p. 106-114, geol. map.

KOKOLIK RIVER

- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. Bl-B36, illus., tables.
- l967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region,
 Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological
 Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. El-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.

- Brooks, A.H., 1902, The coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey 22nd Annual Report, 1900-1901, part III-1, p. 515-571, illus., tables, map. (Wickersham no. 8235)
- Callahan, J.E, 1976, Northern Alaska coal investigations, Western Naval Petroleum Reserve No. 4, in the United States Geological Survey in Alaska Accomplishments during 1975: U.S. Geological Survey Circular 733, p. 30. Ed Cobb (ed.)
- Callahan, J.E., and Martin, G.C., 1981, Coal occurrences of the Nanushuk Group, western arctic Alaska (an update): Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47.
- Chapman, R.M., and Sable, E.G., 1960, Geology of the Utukok-Corwit region, northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey PP 303-G, p. 7-20, 155-163, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Clark, P.R., 1973, Transportation economics of coal resources of northern slope coal fields, Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 31, 134 p., tables (M.S. thesis, University of Alaska).
- Correspondence, 1955-1965, regarding Castle Mountain coal, Chickaloon coal, Kukpowruk River coal, Kokolik River coal, and Cape Beaufort: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys coal library files.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska, Phase I, Vol. II, Task 2, Coal resources of northwest Alaska: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- Denver Coal Research Lab, 1965, To: J.A. Herdlick coking studies of Kokolik River coal with proximate and ultimate analysis.
- Geist, O.W., and Rainey, F.C., 1936, Archaeological excavations at Kokolik, St. Lawrence Island preliminary report: U.S. Government Printing Office. (Miscellaneous publications of the University of Alaska, V. II), p. 390-391.
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, maps.
- Hillegas, B.D., and others, 1976, The Alaska Railroad's future freight market: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Railroad Administration, 3 v. (v. 2, p. 47-65). (NTIS PB 262-461-FST)
- Kaiser Engineers, Inc., 1977, Technical and economic feasibility surface mining coal deposits north slope of Alaska, final report: Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines, 157 p., map.
- Rao, P.D., and Smith, J.E., 1983, Petrology of Cretaceous coals from northern Alaska: U.S. Department of Energy Final Technical Report, Grant No. DE-F6 22-80 PC 30237 and University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 64, 141 p.
- Selvig, W.A., and Ode, W.H., 1957, Low temperature carbonization of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Bulletin 571, p. 47-53.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geological and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 290-320, geol. map.
- Warfield, R.S., 1967, Resume of information on Alaska bituminous coals with particular emphasis on coking characteristics: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 11-67, 20 p.
 - 1969, Sampling and coking studies of several coal beds in the Kokolik River, Kukpowruk River, and Cape Beaufort areas of arctic

- northwestern Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations 7321, 58 p., 11lus., tables.
- Wolff, E.N., and others, 1973, Optimum transportation systems to serve the mineral industry north of the Yukon basin in Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry. Research Laboratory Report 29, scattered pages.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines, 1964, Proximate analysis of Kokolik and Cape Beaufort area coals: Tables, calculations, sample descriptions and locations, sample logs. Geological descriptions, formations, petrographic reports (R.S. Warfield submitted samples).

KUKPOWRUK RIVER

- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. B1-B36, illus., tables.
- 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region, Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. El-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Bone, S.C., 1924, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 22, 25, 26.
- Brooks, A.H., 1902, The coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey 22nd Annual Report, 1900-1901, part III-1, p. 515-571, illus., tables, map. (Wickersham no. 3235)
- 1925, Mineral resources of Alaska, 1923, in Brooks, A.H., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1923: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 773, p. 31-34.
- Callahan, J.E., 1976, Coal investigations in western arctic Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Laboratory Report 37, p. 48-53.
- Callahan, J.E., and Martin, G.C., 1981, Coal occurrences of the Nanushuk Group, western arctic Alaska (an update): Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47.
- Callahan, J.E., and others, 1969, Geology of T. 1 S., R. 44 W., unsurveyed, Umiat principle meridian in the Kukpowruk coal field, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Open-file Report 378, 19 p., tables, illus.
- Chadwick, R.H.W., 1960, Coal for Ruby Creek A report of preliminary reconnaissance: Bear Creek Mining Company, Northwest District, Spokane, Washington (unpublished), 20 p.
- Chapman, R.M., and Sable, E.G., 1960, Geology of the Utukok-Corwin region, northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 303-G, p. 7-20, 155-163, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Clark, P.R., 1973, Transportation economics of coal resources of northern slope coal field, Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 31, 134 p., tables (M.S. thesis, University of Alaska).
- Cooper, H.M., and others, 1946, Analysis of mine, tipple, and delivered samples in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 19-69.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 70-110.
- Correspondence, 1955-1965, regarding Castle Mountain coal, Chickaloon coal, Kukpowruk River coal, Kokolik River coal, and Cape Beaufort copies of reports on the coking properties of Kukpowruk River area samples and

- Castle Mountain coal samples, compared to and blended with Colorado and Utah coals: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys coal library files.
- Denver Coal Research Lab, 1963, To J.A. Herdlick, Juneau, Analysis of coking properties of Kukpowruk coals and commercial potentials compared with Utah, Colorado coals. Proximate and ultimate analysis. Extensive comparative tables.
- E.J. Longyear Company, 1958, Report to University of California Radiation Laboratory on the mineral potential and proposed harbor locations in northwestern Alaska, p. 41-44.
- Gates, G.O., 1946, Coal fields of Alaska, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 1-9.
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, maps.
- Hillegas, B.D. and others, 1976, The Alaska Railroad's future freight market: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Railroad Administration, 3V. (v. 2, p. 47-65). (NTIS PB 262-461-FST)
- Kaiser Engineers, Inc., 1977, Technical and economic feasibility surface mining coal deposits north slope of Alaska, final report: Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines, 157 p., map.
- Knutson, H.A., 1981, Geologic and economic evaluation of bituminous coal, Kukpowruk region, northern coal field, Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 62-78.
- Landers, W.S., and others, 1963, Carbonization study on bituminous coal from the Kukpowruk River area, Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Mines Special Report D-189, Project W/O-63-211, 68 p., illus. (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau).
- Lorain, S.H., 1957, Report of reconnaissance examination Riugetad coal lease Kukpowruk River, Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau, 12 p., map.
- Morgan Coal Company, Kukpowruk River area Coal prospect, 1962.

 Correspondence, gives verbal description of 2 maps produced by Geophoto Services. Gives summary of field notes. Description of specific locations with recommendations for sampling: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys coal library files.
- Paige, Sidney, and others, 1925, A reconnaissance of the Point Barrow region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 772, p. 26-32, illus., sections, geol. map.
- Rao, P.D., 1968, Distribution of certain minor elements in Alaskan coals: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 15, 47 p., tables, p. 24, 25, 30, 35-37, 46, 47.
- 1975, Characterization of Alaska's coals: Focus on Alaska's Coal
 '75: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory
 Report 37, p. 33-47.
- 1981, Alaska's coal resources and research in coal development (preprints): Resource Development and Engineering Conference, National Cheng Kung University, Tainan, Taiwan, R.O.C., p. 5, 7, 8.
- Rao, P.D., and Smith, J.E., 1983, Petrology of Cretaceous coals from northern Alaska: U.S. Department of Energy Final Technical Report, Grant No. DE-F6 22-80 PC 30237 and University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 64, 141 p.
- Smiley, C.J., 1969, Floral zones and correlations of Cretaceous Kukpowruk and Corwin Formations, northwestern Alaska, P.A.P.G., v. 53, no. 10, 5 fig., 3 tables.

- Smith, P.S., 1926, Mineral industry in Alaska, in Smith, P.S., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1924: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 783, p. 26-27.
- 1927, Surveys in northwestern Alaska in 1926: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 797-D, p. 141-142.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 290-320, geol. map.
- Spectrographic Report (to Warfield and Pittman, 1967), Kukpowruk River shale and sandstone, Cape Beaufort shale and sandstone, composition: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys coal library files.
- Toeges, A.L., and Jolley, T.R., 1947, Investigation of coal deposits for local use in the arctic regions of Alaska and proposed mine development: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations 4150, 19 p., illus., map.
- U.S. Department of Energy, 1980, Transportation and market analysis of Alaska coal (second draft): 61 p., tables, illus.
- University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory, 1966, Annual report of research progress: Report No. 7, p. 4-5.
- Wanek, A.A., and Callahan, J.E., 1968, Coal reserves along Kukpowruk River in U.S. Geological Survey research 1968: U.S. Geological Survey PP 600-A, p. A39.
- Warfield, R.S., 1967, Resume of information on Alaskan bituminous coals with particular emphasis on coking characteristics: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 11-67, 20 p.
- 1969, Sampling and coking studies of several coal beds in the Kokolik River, Kukpowruk River, and Cape Beaufort area of arctic northwestern Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations 7321, 58 p., illus., tables.
- Warfield, R.S., Landers, W.S., and Boley, C.C., 1966, Sampling and coking studies of coal from the Kukpowruk River area, arctic northwestern Alaska: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations 6767, 59 p., illus., tables.
- Wolff, E.N., and others, 1973, Optimum transportation systems to serve the mineral industry north of the Yukon basin in Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 29, scattered pages.

UTUKOK RIVER

- Affolter, R.H., Simon, F.O., and Stricker, G.D., 1981, Analysis of coal samples from the Healy, Kenai, Seldovia, and Utukok River Quadrangles, Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 236-266.
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region, Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. El-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Callahan, J.E., 1976, Coal investigations in western arctic Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 48-53.
- Callahan, J.E., and Martin, G.C., 1981, Coal occurrences of the Nanushuk Group, western arctic Alaska (an update): Focus on Alaska's Coal '80: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47.
- Chapman, R.M., and Sable, E.G., 1960, Geology of the Utukok-Corwin region, northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 303-G, p. 7-20, 155-163, illus., tables, geol. map.

- Clark, P.R., 1973, Transportation economics of coal resources of northern slope coal fields, Alaska: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 31, 139 p., tables (M.S. thesis, University of Alaska).
- E.J. Longyear Company, 1958, Report to University of California Radiation Laboratory on the mineral potential and proposed harbor locations in northwestern Alaska, p. 41-44.
- Gates, G.O., 1946, Coal fields of Alaska, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 1-9.
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, maps.
- Paige, Sidney, and others, 1925, A reconnaissance of the Point Barrow region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 772, p. 26-32, illus., sections, geol. map.
- Rao, P.D., and Smith, J.E., 1983, Petrology of Cretaceous coals from northern Alaska: U.S. Department of Energy Final Technical Report, Grant No. DE-FG 22-80 PC 30237 and University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 64, 141 p.
- Schaff, Ross, 1981, Comments from State Division of Minerals and Energy Management: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 8-10.
- Selvig, W.A., and Ode, W.H., 1957, Low temperature carbonization of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines 571, p. 47-53.
- Smith, P.S., 1926, Mineral industry in Alaska, in Smith, P.S., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1924: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 783, p. 26-27.
- 1927, Surveys in northwestern Alaska in 1926: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 797-D, p. 141-142.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 290-320, geol. map.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines, (n.d.), Mineral appraisal of the proposed Utukok and Colville Wild and Scenic Rivers: A Summary Report: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 37-80.

CAPE LISBURNE

- Alaska Division of Energy and Power Development, 1979, Alaska regional energy resources, planning project, phase 1 Alaska's energy resources: v. II of 2V., p. 205, 211-213, 222-224, 614-618, 620, illus., tables (NTIS RLO-2435-1).
- Anderson, Eskil, 1947, Mineral occurrences other than gold deposits in northwestern Alaska: U.S. Department of Mines, Territory of Alaska Pamphlet 5-R (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau).
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of the Cape Lisburne-Colville River region, Alaska, in Contributions to economic geology, 1966: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-E, p. E1-E37, illus., tables, geol. map.
- Brady, J.G., 1903, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 45.
- Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 21.
- Brooks, A.R., 1902, The coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey 22nd Annual Report, 1900-1901, part III-I, p. 515-571, illus., tables, map. (Wickersham no. 8235)

- 1908, The distribution of mineral resources in Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345, p. 21-22.
 - 1909, Mineral resources of Alaska, in Papers on the conservation of mineral reserves: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 394, p. 172-207, map.
 - others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1909: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 442, p. 47-100, map.
 - 1921, The future of Alaska mining, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska, report on progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 43-51.
- 1925, Mineral resources of Alaska, 1923, in Brooks, A.H., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1923: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 773, p. 31-34.
- Brooks, A.H., and others, 1908, Mineral resources of Alaska, report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345, p. 21-22.
- Campbell, R.H., 1961, Thrust faults in the southern Lisburne hills, northwest Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey PP 424-D, p. D194-D196.
- 1967, Areal geology, vicinity of Charlot Site, Lisburne Peninsula, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 395, p. 6.
- Chadwick, R.H.W., 1960, Coal for Ruby Creek A report of preliminary reconnaissance: Bear Creek Mining Company, Northwest District, Spokane, Washington (unpublished), 20 p.
- Coffin, F.P., 1919, Methods for more efficiently utilizing our fuel resources, Part XXIX, the coal resources and transportation facilities in Alaska: General Electric Review, v. 22, no. 7, p. 517-524, 526.
- Collier, A.J., 1905, Coal fields of the Cape Lisburne region, Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Report on progress of investigations of mineral resources of Alaska in 1904: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 259, p. 172-185, tables (preliminary to U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278).
- 1906, Geology and coal resources of the Cape Lisburne region,
 Alaska: U. S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278, 54 p., illus., tables,
 geol. map.
- Division of Minerals and Energy Management (draft), May, 1983: An orientation to five Alaska coal fields The Beluga, Matanuska, Healy, Bering River and Lisburne, Cape Lisburne.
- E.J. Longyear Company, 1958, Report to University of California Radiation Laboratory on the mineral potential and proposed harbor locations in northwestern Alaska, p. 41-44.
- Engleman, Paul, Tuck, Bradford, and others, 1978, Transportation and development of Alaska's natural resources: Anchorage, Federal-State Land Use Planning Commission for Alaska, p. 47-51.
- Evan, G.W., 1921, Alaskan coal fields (preprint no. 1047): American Institute of Mining and Metallurgical Engineers, v. 66, February, p. 2861 (Alaska Historical Library).
- Faylor, R., and Fishbein, S., 1973, Arctic marine commerce, final report V. I: Washington, D.C., Arctic Institute of North America, 333 p. (NTIS COM-78-1200-1-set).
- Mining in Alaska before 1867: Washington Historical Quarterly, v. 7, no. 3, p. 233-238.

- Harrison, E.S., 1908, Coal resources of Alaska: Alaska-Yukon Magazine, v. 5, no. 1, March, p. I, 5-9. (Wickersham no. 1697)
- Jamme, George, 1906, The coal fields of Alaska: A brief outline showing their possibilities: The Alaska Monthly Magazine, v. 2, December, p. 211-219, maps, illus. (Wickersham no. 1701)
- Joint Federal-State Land Use Planning Commission for Alaska, Anchorage, 1977:
 'The D-2 Book' lands of national interest in Alaska, p. ____. (NTIS PB 279-901/3ST) E.
- Kaiser Engineers, Inc., 1977, Technical and economic feasibility surface mining coal deposits north slope of Alaska, final report: Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines, 157 p., map.
- Knapp, L.E., 1889, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 18.
- Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 18.
- Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 30-31.
- Martin, G.C., 1906, Markets for Alaska coal: U.S. Geological Survey 284, p. 18, 20, 27.
- 1907, The Alaska coal fields: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 314-B, p. 40-46, illus., tables, maps.
- Mitchell, G.E., 1908, The coal resources of Alaska: The American review of reviews, v. 38, December, p. 699-702, map. (Wickersham no. 1725)
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, 11lus.
- National Geographic Magazine, 1902, Coal resources of Alaska: v. 13, no. 5, p. 172-174. (Wickersham no. 1727)
- Packard, Winthrop, 1900, Coal mining at the North Pole: National Monthly, v. 13, no. 12, p. 163-170. (Wickersham no. 1735)
- Sanders, R.B., 1981, Coal resources of Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 11-31.
- Schraeder, F.C., 1904, A reconnaissance in northern Alaska across the Rocky Mountains to Cape Lisburne in 1901 with notes by W.J. Peters: U.S. Geological Survey PP 20, p. 106-114, geol. map.
- Smith, P.S., 1939, Areal geology of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 192, p. 28, 31, 53-58, 64-65.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 290-320, geol. map.
- Strong, J.F.A., 1913, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: Washington, Government Printing Office, p. 28-29.
- 1914, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: Washington, Government Printing Office, p. 30-31.
- Swineford, A.P., 1886, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: Washington, Government Printing Office, p. 9-19.
- Interior: Washington, Government Printing Office, p. 19-20.
- 1889, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: Washington, Government Printing Office, p. 19.
- Tailleur, I.L., 1965, Low-volatile bituminous coal of Mississippian age on the Lisburne Peninsula, northwestern Alaska, in Geological Survey

- research, 1965: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 525-B, p. B34-B38, illus., tables.
- Tuck, B.H., 1979, Transportation of coal and hard rock mineral concentrates from northwest Alaska: Joint Federal-State Land Use Planning Commission for Alaska, 30 p.
- U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs, Juneau (Records), 1949-1950, Point Hope Mining: U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Record Container 1603, File 951.
- U.S. Congress, House of Representatives, Committee on Public Lands, 1911, Hearings...on H.R. 32080 "To provide for the leasing of coal lands in the district of Alaska and for other purposes": Government Printing Office, 99 p.
- U.S. Department of the Interior, 1916, Regulations concerning coal-land leases in the Territory of Alaska: Washington, Government Printing Office, 86 p., map.
- U.S. Geological Survey, 1974, An assessment of mineral resources in Alaska: Washington, Government Printing Office, scattered pages.
- Warfield, R.S., 1967, Resume of information on Alaskan bituminous coals with particular emphasis on coking characteristics: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 11-67, 20 p.

POINT HOPE

- Alaska Division of Energy and Power Development, 1979, Alaska regional energy resources, planning project, phase 1 Alaska's energy resources: VII of 2V., p. 205, 211-213, 222-224, 614-18, 620, illus., tables (NTIS RLO-2435-1).
- Brody, S.E., and DeVries, A.H., 1981, Coal policy paper-leasing and taxation: Alaska State Legislative, House Research Agency Report 80-4, 75 p., tables, illus.
- Chadwick, R.H.W., 1960, Coal for Ruby Creek A report of preliminary reconnaissance: Bear Creek Mining Company, Northwest District, Spokane, Washington (unpublished), 20 p.
- Collier, A.J., 1905, Coal fields of the Cape Lisburne region, Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Report on progress of investigations of mineral resources of Alaska in 1904: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 259, p. 172-185, tables. (Preliminary to U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278)
- Conwell, C.N., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1976, High quality coal near Point Hope, northwestern Alaska, in Short notes on Alaskan geology, 1976: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys Geological Report 51, p. 31-35, illus., tables.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska, Phase I, Vol. I, Task I: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaskan Power Authority, 15 p. 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska, Phase I,
- Vol. II, Task 2: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaskan Power Authority, 216 p.
- Heiner, L.E., and Wolff, E.N., 1969, Mineral resources of northern Alaska, final report: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 16, p. 3, 10, 21-22, 169, maps.
- U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs, Juneau (Records), 1949~1950, Point Hope Mining: U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Record Container 1603, File 951.

KOBUK RIVER

- Alaska Division of Energy and Power Development, 1979, Alaska regional energy resources, planning project, phase 1 Alaska's energy resources: VII of 2V., p. 205, 211-213, 222-224, 614-18, 620, 111us., tables. (NTIS RLO-2435-1)
- Anderson, Eskil, 1947, Mineral occurrences other than gold deposits in northwestern Alaska: U.S. Department of Mines, Territory of Alaska Pamphlet 5-R. (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau)
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. B1-B36, illus., tables.
- Bauer, R., and Hanna, D., 1978, State of Alaska coal haul road system report: Anchorage, Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities, Transportation Planning Division, 26 p., illus., maps.
- Brooks, A.H., 1910, Alaska coal and its utilization, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1909: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 442, p. 47-100, map.
- Brooks, A.H., and Capps, S.R., 1924, The Alaska mining industry in 1922, in Brooks, A.H., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigation in 1922: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 755, p. 18-20, 33, 47.
- Cathcart, S.H., 1920, Mining in northwestern Alaska, in Martin, G.C., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1910: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 712-G, p. 196.
- Chadwick, N.H.W., 1960, Coal for Ruby Creek A report of preliminary reconnaissance: Bear Creek Mining Company, Northwest District, Spokane, Washington (unpublished), 20 p.
- Coffin, F.K., 1919, Methods for more efficiently utilizing our fuel resources, Part XXIX, the coal resources and transportation facilities in Alaska: General Electric Review, v. 22, no. 7, p. 517-524, 526. (Wickersham no. 1669)
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. I, Task 1: Fuel utilization in northwestern Alaska and
 summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 15 p.
 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I.
 - Vol. II, Task 2: Fuel utilization in northwestern Alaska and summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p.
- E.J. Longyear Company, 1958, Report to University of California Radiation Laboratory on the mineral potential and proposed harbor locations in northwestern Alaska, p. 41-44.
- Evan, G.W., 1921, Alaskan coal fields (preprint no. 1047): American Institute of Mining and Metallurgical Engineers, v. 66, February, p. 286 (Alaska Historical Library).
- Faylor, R., and Fishbein, S., 1973, Arctic marine commerce, final report V.I: Washington, D.C., Arctic Institute of North America, 333 p. (NTIS COM-78-1200-1-set)
- Gates, G.O., 1946, Coal fields of Alaska, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 1-9.
- Martin, G.C., 1920, The Alaskan mining industry in 1918, in Martin, G.C., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1918: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 712, p. 13, 24-26, 34, 52.
- McGee, D.L., and O'Connor, K.M., 1976, Mineral resources of Alaska and the impact of federal land policies on their availability, Coal: Alaska

- Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys Open-file Report 51, 23 p., tables.
- Mendenhall, W.C., 1902, Fort Hamlin to Kotzebue Sound, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 10, 63 p.
- Mulligan, J.J., 1974, Mineral resources of the Trans-Alaska Pipeline corridor: U.S. Bureau of Mines Information Circular No. 8626, scattered pages, map.
- Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior, U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 20.
- Sanders, R.B., 1981, Coal resources of Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 11-31.
- , 1981, Outline of coal resources in Alaska and comments regarding resource development in Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p.?
- Smith, P.S., 1913, The Noatak-Kobuk region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 536, p. 151-153,
- , 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1931, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1931: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 844, p. 9, 69-74.
- Smith, P.S., and Eakin, H.E., 1911, The Shungnak region, Kobuk Valley: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 480-J, p. 304.
- Smith, P.S., and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 290-320, geol. map.
- Twenhofel, W.S., 1953, Potential Alaskan mineral resources for proposed electrochemical and electrometallurgical industries in the upper Lynn Canal area, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Circular 252, p. 12, illus.
- U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs, Juneau (Records), 1951, Coal mines general, 1951: U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Record Container 1603, File 950A. (Federal Record Center, Seattle)
- U.S. Bureau of Mines, 1978, Mineral appraisal of the proposed Kobuk Valley National Park, Alaska A preliminary comment: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 110-78, p. 11.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau (n.d.), Mineral data appraisal of the proposal Noatak National Ecological Preserve A preliminary comment: U.S. Bureau of Mines Open-file Report 67-78, 33 p.

KOBUK RIVER/HUNT RIVER

- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. I, Task 1: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources, prepared for Alaska Power Authority.
- Vol. II, Task 2: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources, prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- McGee, D.L., and O'Connor, K.M., 1976, Mineral resources of Alaska and the impact of federal land policies on their availability, Coal: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys Open-file Report 51, 23 p., tables.

KOBUK RIVER/KALLARICHUK RIVER

- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. II, Task 2: Coal resources of northwest Alaska, prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- Gates, G.O., 1946, Coal fields of Alaska, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 1-9.
- Smith, P.S., 1913, The Noatak-Kobuk region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 536, p. 151-153.
- Chadwick, R.H.W., 1960, Coal for Ruby Creek A report of preliminary reconnaissance: Bear Creek Mining Company, Northwest District, Spokane, Washington (unpublished), 20 p.

KOBUK RIVER/KOGOLUKTUK RIVER

- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. II, Task 2: Coal Resources of northwest Alaska, prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- Harrington, G.L., 1919, The gold and platinum glaciers of the Kivalik-Koyuk region, in Martin, G.C., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1917: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 692, p. 383-385.
- McGee, D.L., and O'Connor, K.M., 1976, Mineral resources of Alaska and the impact of federal land policies on their availability, Coal: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys Open-file Report 51, 23 p., tables.
- Smith, P.S., 1913, The Noatak-Kobuk region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 536, p. 151-153.

KOBUK RIVER/LOCKWOOD HILLS

- McGee, D.L., and O'Connor, K.M., 1976, Mineral resources of Alaska and the impact of federal land policies on their availabilty, Coal: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys Open-file Report 51, 23 p., tables.
- Smith, P.S., 1913, The Noatak-Kobuk region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 536, p. 151-153.
- Smith, P.S. and Mertie, J.B., 1930, Geology and mineral resources of northwestern Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 815, p. 317.

SEWARD PENINSULA

- Alaska Division of Energy and Power Development, 1979, Alaska regional energy resources, planning project, phase I ~ Alaska's energy resources: VII of 2V., p. 205, 211-213, 222-224, G14-18, G20, illus., tables (NTIS RLO-2435-1).
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. Bi-B36, illus., tables.
- Bell, C.H., and Anderson, R.C., 1946, Production, distribution, and use, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 10-14.
- Brooks, A.H., 1906, The mining industry in 1905, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Report on progress of investigations of mineral resources of Alaska in

- 1905: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 284, p. 9.
- 1907, The coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey 22nd Annual Report, 1900-1901, part III-1, p. 515-571, 111us., tables, map. (Wickersham no. 8235)
- 1908, The distribution of mineral resources in Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345, p. 21-22.
- 1908, Mineral resources of Alaska, report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345, p. 21-22.
- 1909, Mineral resources of Alaska, in Papers on the conservation of mineral reserves: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 394, p. 172-207, map.
- 1909, The mining industry in 1908, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1908: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 379, p. 22, 38, 47, 60-61, 262-364.
- 1910, Alaska coal and its utilization, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1909: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 442, p. 47-100, map.
- 1912, The mining industry in 1911, in Brooks, A.R., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1911: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 520, p. 18, 42-43.
- 1913, The mining industry in 1912, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1912: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 542, p. 19-20, 51.
- 1921, The future of Alaska mining, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska, report on progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 43-51.
- Cathcart, S.H., 1922, Metalliferous lodes in southern Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1920: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 722, p. 186.
- Collier, A.J., 1906, Geology and coal resources of the Cape Lisburne region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 278, 54 p., illus., tables, geol. map.
- Cooper, H.M., and others, 1946, Analysis of mine, tipple, and delivered samples, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 19-69.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. II, Task 2: Coal resources of northwest Alaska, prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- E.J. Longyear Company, 1958, Report to University of California Radiation Laboratory on the mineral potential and proposed harbor locations in northwestern Alaska, p. 41-44.
- Eakins, G.R., and Conwell, C.N., 1981, Coal program of the Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 464-465.
- Faylor, R., and Fishbein, S., 1973, Arctic marine commerce, final report V.I: Washington, D.C., Arctic Institute of North America, 333 p. (NTIS COM-78-1200-1-set).
- Gates, G.O., 1946, Coal fields of Alaska, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 1-9.

- Harrington, G.L., 1919, The gold and platinum placers of the Kivalik-Koyuk region, in Martin, G.C., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1917: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 692, p. 383-385.
- Harrison, E.S., 1908, Coal resources of Alaska: Alaska-Yukon Magazine, v. 5, no. 1, March, p. 1, 5-9. (Wickersham no. 1697)
- Hoggatt, W.B., 1908, Report of the Governor of the District of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 12.
 - 1909, Report of the Governor of the District of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office.
- Lord, N.W., and others, 1913: Analysis of coal in the United States with descriptions of mine and field samples collected between July 1, 1904 and June 30, 1910: U.S. Bureau of Mines Bulletin 22, p. 41-47, 358-378 (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau).
- Martin, G.C., 1907, The Alaska coal fields: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 314B, p. 40-46, illus., tables, maps.
- 1920, The Alaska mining industry in 1918, in Martin, G.C., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1918: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 712, p. 4, 25.
- Mitchell, G.E., 1908, The coal resources of Alaska: The American review of reviews, v. 38, December, p. 699-702, map. (Wickersham no. 1725)
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, illus.
- Sanders, R.B., 1976, Coal resources of Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 21-32.
- Smith, P.S., 1908, Investigation of the mineral deposits of Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345: p. 249.
- 1927, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1926, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1926: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 797-A, p. 41-46.
 - 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1933, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1933: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 864, p. 9, 70-74.
- 1937, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1935, <u>in Smith</u>, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1935: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 880-A, p. 10, 77-82.
- Bulletin 926-A, p. 85-89, table.
- 1942, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1940, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1940: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 933, p. 10-11, 82-85.
- Smith, P.S., and Eakin, H.M., 1911, A geologic reconnaissance in southeastern Seward Peninsula and the Norton Bay-Nulato region, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 449, p. 136-141, maps.
- U.S. Congress, House of Representatives, Committee on Public Lands, 1914: Alaska coal-leasing bill....63rd Congress, 2nd Session on H.R. 13137....Government Printing Office, 267 p.

CHICAGO CREEK

- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. Bi-B36, illus., tables.
- Bell, C.H., and Anderson, R.L., 1946, Production and distribution and use, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 10-14.
- Brooks, A.H., 1910, Alaska coal and its utilization, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1909: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 442, p. 47-100, map.
- 1916, The Alaska mining industry in 1915, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1915: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 642, p. 30-31.
- 1918, The Alaska mining industry in 1916, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1916: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 662-A, p. 14, 25-30.
 - 1909, The mining industry in 1908, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1908: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 379, p. 22, 38, 47, 60-61, 362-364.
- 1912, The mining industry in 1911, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1911: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 520, p. 18, 42-43.
- Brooks, A.H., and Martin, G.C., 1921, The mining industry in 1919, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 60, 72-74, 86-87, 236-237.
- Cathcart, S.H., 1922, Metalliferous lodes in southern Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1920: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 722, p. 186.
- Chadwick, R.H.W., 1960, Coal for Ruby Creek A report of preliminary reconnaissance: Bear Creek Mining Company, Northwest District, Spokane, Washington (unpublished), 20 p.
- Coffin, F.P., 1919, Methods for more efficiently utilizing our fuel resources, Part XXIX, the coal resources and transportation facilities in Alaska: General Electric Review, v. 22, no. 7, p. 517-524, 526. (Wickersham no. 1669)
- Cooper, H.M., and others, 1946, Analysis of mine, tipple, and delivered samples, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 19-69.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 70-110.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. I, Task 1: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources, prepared for Alaska Power Authority.
- Vol. II, Task 2: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources, prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- Eakins, G.R., and Conwell, C.N., 1981, Coal program of the Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 464-465.

- Eakins, G.R., and Kline, J.T., 1980, Chicago Creek investigations: Summary of field trip, September 8-13, 1980, written commun., Chicago Creek. Analysis, location, drilling.
- Gates, G.O., 1946, Coal fields of Alaska, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 1-9.
- Harrington, G.L., 1919, The gold and platinum placers of the Kivalik-Koyuk region, in Martin, G.C., Mineral resources of Alaska report of progress of investigations in 1917: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 692, p. 383-385.
- 1921, Mining on Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report of progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 237.
- Heirer, V.D., 1977, Alaska mining history: Alaska Division of Parks, Anchorage, Alaska, History and Archaeology Series No. 17, 463 p.
- Henshaw, F.F., 1909, Mining in the Fairhaven Precinct, Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1908: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 379, p. 362-364.
- 1910, Mining in Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral Resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1909: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 442, p. 368-369.
- Jamme, George, 1906, The coal fields of Alaska: A brief outline showing their possibilities: The Alaska Monthly Magazine, v. 2, December, p. 211-219, maps, illus. (Wickersham no. 19701)
- Lord, N.W., and others, 1913, Analysis of coal in the United States with descriptions of mine and field samples collected between July I, 1904 and June 30, 1910: U.S. Bureau of Mines Bulletin 22, p. 46-47, 377-378 (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau).
- Manning, K.H., and Stevens, D.L., 1983, The Chicago Creek and Norton Sound area coal exploration programs, 1982: a subcontract to Denali Drilling, Inc., for the State of Alaska, Department of Natural Resources.
- Mitchell, G.E., 1908, The coal resources of Alaska: The American review of reviews, v. 38, December, p. 699-702, map. (Wickersham no. 1725)
- Moffit, F.H., 1905, Fairhaven gold placers, Seward Peninsula, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 247, p. 67.
- 1927, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1925, in Moffit, F.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1925: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 792, p. 6, 34-36.
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, 111us.
- Parks, G.A., 1926, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 43, 47.
- Reed, I.M., 1933, Report on the coal and gold placer deposit of the lower Kugruk River Valley, Seward Peninsula: Alaska (Territory) Bureau of Mines Miscellaneous Report MR-1, unpublished report, 13 p.
- Rao, P.D., and Wolff, E.N., 1982, Characterization and evaluation of washability of Alaskan coals, selected seams from Susitna, Herendeen Bay, Chicago Creek, northern Alaska, Nenana, and Matanuska coalfields: U.S. Department of Energy Final Technical Report for Phase IV, p. 33, 37.
- Sanders, R.B., 1976, Coal resources of Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '75, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 37, p. 21-32.

- University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 11-31.
- Smith, P.S., 1908, Investigation of the mineral deposits of Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345, p. 249.
- 1927, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1926, <u>in</u> Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1926: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 797-A, p. 41-46.
- 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1931, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1931: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 844, p. 9, 69-74.
- 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1932, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1932: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 857-A, p. 7, 9, 65-70.
 - 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1933, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1933: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 864, p. 9, 70-74.
 - 1937, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1933, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1935: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 880-A, p. 10, 77-82.
 - Bulletin 897-A, p. 87-92, table.
- 1942, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1940, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1940: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 933, p. 10-11, 82-85.
- Strong, J.F.A., 1913, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: Washington, Government Printing Office, p. 28-29.
 - Interior: Washington, Government Printing Office, p. 30-31.
- Toeges, A.L., and Jolley, T.R., 1947, Investigation of coal deposits for local use in the Arctic regions of Alaska and proposed mine development: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations RI-4150, 19 p., illus., map.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines, 1946, Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, 114 p., map.
- U.S. Department of the Interior, 1916, Regulations concerning coal-land leases in the Territory of Alaska: Washington Government Printing Office, 86 p., maps.

KOYUK RIVER

- Anderson, Eskil, 1947, Mineral occurrences other than gold deposits in northwestern Alaska: U.S. Department of Mines, Territory of Alaska Pamphlet 5-R (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau).
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. B1-B36, illus., tables.
- Brooks, A.H., and Martin, G.C., 1921, The Alaskan mining industry in 1919, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 231-237.

- Cathcart, S.H., 1922, Metalliferous lodes in southern Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1920: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 722, p. 186.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. I, Task 1: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 15 p.
 - Vol. II, Task 2: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- Gates, G.O., 1946, Coalfields of Alaska, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 1-9.
- Harrington, G.L., 1919, The gold and platinum placers of the Kivalik-Koyuk region, in Martin, G.C., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1917: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 692, p. 383-385.
- 1921, Mining on Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 239.
- Land and Resources, published by Bering Straits Native Corporation, 1981, Energy resources, p. 27.
- Lyle, W.M., Palmer, I.F., Jr., Bolm, J.G., and Flett, F.O., 1982, Hydrocarbon reservoir and source-rock characteristics from selected areas of southwestern Alaska: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys Professional Report 77, 35 p.
- Manning, K.H., and Stevens, D.L., 1983, The Chicago Creek and Norton Sound area coal exploration program, 1982: a subcontract to Denali Drilling, Inc., for the State of Alaska, Department of Natural Resources.
- McGee, D.L., and O'Connor, K.M., 1976, Mineral resources of Alaska and the impact of federal land policies on their availability, Coal: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Survey Open-file Report 51, 23 p., tables.
- Smith, P.S., 1908, Investigation of the mineral deposits of Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345, p. 249.
- Smith, P.S., and Eakins, H.M., 1910, Mineral resources of the Nulato-Council region in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1909: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 442, p. 350-352.

KUGRUK RIVER

- Anderson, Eskil, 1947, Mineral occurrences other than gold deposits in northwestern Alaska: U.S. Department of Mines, Territory of Alaska Pamphlet 5-R. (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau)
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. Bl-B36, illus., tables.
- Brooks, A.H., 1923, The Alaskan mining industry in 1921, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1921: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 739A, p. 14-17.
- Brooks, A.H., and Capps, S.R., 1924, The Alaska mining industry in 1922, in Brooks, A.H., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 122: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 755, p. 18-20, 33, 47.

- Brooks, A.H., and Martin, G.C., 1921, The Alaskan mining industry in 1919, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 236-237.
- Cathcart, S.H., 1922, Metalliferous lodes in southern Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1920: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 722, p. 186.
- Cathcart, S.H., 1920, Mining in northwestern Alaska, in Martin, G.C., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1918: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 712-G, p. 196.
- Chadwick, R.H.W., 1960, Coal for Ruby Creek A report of preliminary reconnaissance: Bear Creek Mining Company, Northwest District, Spokane, Washington (unpublished), 20 p.
- Coffin, F.P., 1919, Methods for more efficiently utilizing our fuel resources, Part XXIX, the oal resources and transportation facilities in Alaska: General Electric Review, v. 22, no. 7, p. 517-524, 526 (Wickersham no. 1669).
- Collier, A.J., and others, 1908, Gold placers of parts of the Seward Peninsula: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 328, p. 83-85.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. II, Task 2: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- Eakins, G.R., and Kline, J.T., 1980, Chicago Creek investigations: Summary of field trip, September 8, 1980, written commun., Kugruk River. Analysis, location, drilling.
- Fieldner, A.C., 1918, Analysis of mine and core samples of coal collected in the fiscal years 1913 to 1916: U.S. Bureau of Mines Bulletin 123, p. 147-160 (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau).
- Harrington, G.L., 1919, The gold and platinum placers of the Kivalik-Koyuk region, in Martin, G.C., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1917: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 692, p. 383-385.
- 1919, Mining in the Fairhaven Precinct, Alaska, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1908: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 379, p. 362-364.
- 1921, Mining on Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 237.
- Henshaw, F.F., 1910, Mining in Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1909: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 442, p. 368-369.
- McGee, D.L., and O'Connor, K.M., 1976, Mineral resources of Alaska and the impact of federal land policies on their availability, Coal: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys Open-file Report 51, 23 p., tables.
- Moffit, F.H., 1905, Fairhaven gold placers, Seward Peninsula, Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 247, p. 67.
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, illus.
- Reed, I.M., 1933, Report on the coal and gold placer deposit of the lower Kuguruk River valley, Seward Peninsula: Alaska (Territory) Bureau of Mines Miscellaneous Report MR-1, unpublished report, 13 p.

- Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 23, 27-29.
- Riggs, Thomas, Jr., 1919, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Sectetary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 20.
- Smith, P.S., 1908, Investigation of the mineral deposits of Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1907: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 345, p. 249.
- 1926, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1924, in Smith, P.S., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1924: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 783, p. 26-27.
- 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1931, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1931: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 844, p. 9, 69-74.
- 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1933, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1933: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 864, p. 9, 70-74.
- Toeges, A.L., and Jolley, T.R., 1947, Investigation of coal deposits for local use in the Arctic regions of Alaska and proposed mine development: U.S. Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations RI-4150, 19 p., illus., map.
- U.S. Bureau of Mines, 1946, Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, 114 p., map.
- U.S. Department of Interior, 1916, Regulations concerning coal-land leases in the Territory of Alaska: Washington Government Printing Office, 86 p., maps.

SINUK RIVER

Herreid, Gordon, 1970, Geology and geochemistry of the Sinuk area, Seward Peninsula, Alaska: Alaska Division of Mines and Geology Geologic Report No. 36, 63 p.

UNALAKLEET

- Abernathy, R.F., and Cochrane, E.M., 1960, Feasibility of ash from United States coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Information Circular 7923, p. 28-32.
- Alaska Division of Energy and Power Development, 1979, Alaska regional energy resources, planning project, phase 1 Alaska's energy resources: VI of 2V., p. 91-97, 133, illus., tables. (NTIS RLO-2435-1)
- Anderson, Eskil, 1947, Mineral occurrences other than gold deposits in northwestern Alaska: U.S. Department of Mines, Territory of Alaska Pamphlet 5-R. (U.S. Bureau of Mines, Juneau)
- Barnes, F.F., 1967, Coal resources of Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 1242-B, p. B1-B36, illus., tables.
- Brooks, A.H., and Martin, G.C., 1921, The Alaskan mining industry in 1919, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 236-237.
- Chadwick, R.H.W., 1960, Coal for Ruby Creek A report of preliminary reconnaissance: Bear Creek Mining Company, Northwest District, Spokane, Washington (unpublished), 20 p.

- Coffin, F.P., 1919, Methods for more efficiently utilizing our fuel resources, Part XXIX, the coal resources and transportation facilities in Alaska: General Electric Review, v. 22, no. 7, p. 517-524, 526. (Wickersham no. 1669)
- Conwell, C.N., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1981, Coal for Alaska villages: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80, University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 172-180.
- Cooper, A.M., and others, 1946, Analysis of mine, tipple, and delivered samples, in Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, p. 19-69.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. I, Task 1: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 15 p.
- Dames and Moore, 1980, Assessment of coal resources of northwest Alaska Phase I, Vol. II, Task 2: Fuel utilization in northwest Alaska and summary of coal resources: Prepared for Alaska Power Authority, 216 p., maps.
- Faylor, R., and Fishbein, S., 1973, Arctic marine commerce, final report, V.I: Washington, D.C., Arctic Institute of North America, 333 p. (NTIS COM-78-1200-i-set).
- Gassaway, J.S., and Abramson, B.S., 1970, Map and table showing distribution of known coal deposits in central Alaska: U.S. Geological Survey Open-file Report 77-1686, econ. geol. map.
- Harrington, G.L., 1921, Mining on Seward Peninsula, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1919: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 714, p. 237.
- Land and resources, published by Bering Strait Native Corporations, 1981? Energy resources - Unalakleet, p. 27.
- Manning, K.H., and Stevens, D.L., 1982, The Chicago Creek and Norton Sound area coal exploration programs, 1982.
- Martin, G.C., 1920, The Alaskan mining industry in 1918, in Martin, G.L., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1918: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 712, p. 13, 24, p. 50.
- McGee, D.L., and O'Connor, K.M., 1976, Mineral resources of Alaska and the impact of federal land policies on their availability, Coal: Alaska Division of Geological and Geophysical Surveys Open-file Report 51, 23 p., tables.
- Naske, C.M., and Triplehorn, D.M., 1980, The federal government and Alaska's coal: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, Northern Engineer, v. 12, no. 3, p. 11-23, illus.
- Riggs, Thomas, Jr., 1919, Report of the Governor of Alaska to the Secretary of the Interior: U.S. Government Printing Office, p. 20.
- Sanders, R.B., 1981, Coal resources of Alaska: Focus on Alaska's Coal '80: University of Alaska Mineral Industry Research Laboratory Report 47, p. 11-31.
- Sharp, Maurice, 1933, Coal testing laboratory report for the calendar year, 1932: Alaska Railroad Record Group 322, Federal Record Container 90370, File Coal 86.10, 3 p.
- Smith, P.S., 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1931, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1931: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 844, p. 9, 69-74.
 - 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1932, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1932: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 857-A, p. 7, 9, 65-70.

- 1934, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1933, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1933: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 864, p. 9, 70-74.
- 1937, Mineral industry of Alaska in 1934, in Smith, P.S., Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1934: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 868, p. 9, 10, 72-76.
- Smith, P.S., and Eakin, H.M., 1910, Mineral resources of the Nulato-Council region, in Brooks, A.H., and others, Mineral resources of Alaska report on progress of investigations in 1909: U.S. Geological Survey Bulletin 442, p. 350-352.
- U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs, Juneau (Records), 1947-1950, Mining General: U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Record Container 1603, File 950A (Federal Record Center, Seattle).
- U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs, Juneau (Records), 1951, Coal mines general, 1951: U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs Record Group 75, Federal Record Container 1603, File 950A (Federal Record Center, Seattle).
- U.S. Bureau of Mines, 1946, Analyses of Alaskan coals: U.S. Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 682, 114 p., map.
- U.S. Geological Survey, 1974, An assessment of mineral resources in Alaska: Washington, Government Printing Office, scattered pages.
- Unalakleet coal deposit, 1943, Info. coal procurement section, Alaska Defense Commission.